# MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FORUM HELD AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES ON TUESDAY, 9 JULY 2019 COMMENCING AT 1.30 PM

#### **PRESENT**

Mrs S Z Haq Chair

Vice-Chair

#### **COUNCILLORS**

J W Boyce J Kaufman

#### **OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE**

Ms P Fisher Marketing & Insight Manager
Ms V Quintyne Community Engagement Officer

#### **OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE**

Mr Roger Allsopp Baptist Church South Wigston Mr G Burnside Age UK Oadby and Wigston

Mr Steve Dacey Oadby, Wigson and South Wigston Disability Forum

Domingo ASDA, Oadby

Ms Jayne Edwards South Leicestershire Adult Services Communities & Wellbeing

Ms M Flynn Leicestershire County Council

Mr B Gohill Oadby

Ms Lesley Green Oadby Methodist Church

Harrison South Leicester Foodbank Wigston

Ms Caroline Holden Age UK Oadby and Wigston

Mr Fred Jennings Christians Against Poverty Wigston

Knight WomenToday Mr Nazim Pirbbhai Health Watch

Ms S Renton Leicestershire County Council

#### 34. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

Councillor Samia Haq introduced herself as the new Chair of the Community Engagement Forum. As the Chair she expressed thanks to Councillor Jeffrey Kaufman for his previous chairing of the Community Engagement Forum. Colleagues present then individually introduced themselves and stated what organisation they represented.

#### 35. APOLOGIES

Chris Huscroft (Wigston Foodbank)

Richard Darlaston (Lions Clubs International, Wigston)

Claire Bradshaw
Les Gill
Lesley Green
(Libraries, Wigston Magna)
(Helping Hands South Wigston)
(Helping Hands South Wigston)

Vinod Ghadiali (O&W Hindu Association)

Jo Knight (Women Today, Oadby and Wigston)

Jan Bryars (OW&SW Multicultural Group)
Peter Owers (Christians Against Poverty)

Garry Burns (Age UK, Wigston)

#### **Community Engagement Forum**

Tuesday, 9 July 2019

Chair's Initials

#### 36. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday, 12 March 2019 were approved by Councillor Kaufman and seconded by B Gohil as a true record.

#### 37. MATTERS ARISING

**Page 2:** The Chair informed colleagues that the Community Engagement Forum is to receive a pot of funding.

#### **Action:**

• This funding will feature on the agenda for the next CEF (Community Engagement Forum).

**Page 2**: NOCN (National Open College Network) Level 1 Community Development Course. Due to low take up this learning opportunity was postponed to start at a future date.

**Page 2:** The presentation slides which accompanied the presentation on the Social and Human Rights Model of Disability versus the Medical Model were circulated to CEF colleagues.

**Page 3:** The presentation slides which were to accompany the agenda item from Steve Dacey, Mark Stevens, Sue Renton and Mary Flynn were circulated to CEF colleagues.

**Page 4:** The presentation slides which accompanied the presentation from Clockwise on the service it provides to address poverty reduction, building financial resilience and challenging debt management were circulated to CEF colleagues.

**Page 4:** A handout which accompanied the update on Universal Credit, which noted how the Council is helping residents, was circulated to CEF colleagues.

#### 38. LIVING WITH THE CHALLENGE OF DISABILITY - REAL LIFE PERSPECTIVES

Steve Dacey a member of the emerging Oadby, Wigston and South Wigston Disability Forum spoke from his perspective on the challenges of being a wheelchair user living in an urban environment.

Ongoing key issues raised were;

- Vehicle users parking inconsiderately on kerbsides.
- Access to super store shopping is limited. Accessing Lidl in South Wigston is easy but egress using a motorised wheelchair to use a steep ramp to traverse Station Road is very challenging. The gradient is too steep.
- Some of the shops in Wigston have neither ramps nor lifts to support entry into shops.
- Shop doorways are not all wide enough to allow wheelchair access.
- Entry to Blaby Road Park is difficult his is due to the opening mechanism.
- Dog faeces left on pavements are offensive especially if a wheelchair accidently goes through it.
- On domestic bin collection days the bin is not always manageable to take to the kerbside. It was explained that the Council maintains an Assisted Collection List to support households with the emptying of bins. This Assisted Collection list is maintained by Customer Services on Bell Street.
- The Depot at Oadby were requested to ensure household dustbins were placed away from the centre of pavements. This still remains an issue.
- Dustbins left in the middle of pavements are an obstacle.
- Accessing local bus transport when pram users with grocery shopping take over wheelchair space is frustrating.
- The Community Engagement Officer provides support to the developing Oadby, Wigston and South Wigston Disability Forum.

#### **Action:**

SD is to speak with Councillor Boyce outside of the meeting to address some of the issues raised.

#### **Action:**

VQ is to find out about the assisted collection service and have information about it placed in Letterbox.

#### 39. **LEICESTER SOUTH FOODBANK - HELPING LOCAL PEOPLE IN CRISIS**

Brian Harrison from Leicester South Foodbank lead by the Trussell Trust made the key points concerning how the Foodbank helps and supports people dealing with food poverty.

- The food is distributed from the Kings Centre on Bull Head Street, Wigston. The Foodbank initially served 500 people. Its goal is to help people out of food poverty by 2026.
- By the year end it is expected that the Foodbank will have served 4,000

- people.
- It operates on Mondays and uses the Red Voucher Scheme. A voucher is issued which is then redeemed. Approximately forty vouchers are distributed monthly. A weekly voucher can cover a family of five. A parcel can last anything from two to three days. 35 to 40 people are seen fortnightly.
- There is a support service in schools. Only the school families receive a service.
- 75 to 100 food parcels a fortnight are distributed to schools and other hubs. There are six hubs.
- A service is provided at South Leicester College and the two local universities.
- Young people are helped with food spending guidance. Student support offer a wraparound service and offer food parcels.
- Some people are living on toast and butter.
- Education and Welfare Services are working with the Foodbank.
- The Foodbank has a van to pick up food. Food can now be distributed five days a week.
- Supermarkets such as ASDA provide food donations.
- Food supplies are also provided by the Muslim Community on occasions such as Ramadam.
- The Trussell Trust is trying to target and make people aware of the foods it needs for distribution and it also support the independent food banks.
- The Foodbank has worked with the Council's Customer Service Centre from the beginning. Initial referrals come through Customer Services.
- Some people abuse the Foodbank. This is not condoned but no one is turned away. Abuse can lead to Police and Trading Standards action if such abuse is regular.
- More in-work families appear to be using Foodbanks.
- More coordination is taking place between agencies to ensure food is stored and collected so there is no waste.
- All Foodbanks are volunteer run.
- Some families appear to only struggle once a month with having enough food.
- People on Universal Credit also access the foodbank. This can be due to people having to wait at least six weeks for Universal Credit.
- South Leicester Salvation Army receives 30 to forty parcels. The Community Fridge in Wigston is supplied by the Foodbank.
- Fareshare provides fresh produce to the Foodbank.
- The needs of people are tiered. They receive an emergency allocation.
- People are referred to Helping Hands for debt recovery service at Trinity Methodist Church in Oadby.
- Numbers of people with the challenges of mental health and disability are being seen.

#### 40. UNIVERSAL CREDIT UPDATE

Mick Bullock provided an update paper covering key points about Universal Credit. The paper includes;

- Information on changes to Universal Credit.
- How people can be helped to claim Universal Credit.
- The impact of Universal Credit on residents, especially moving into work and off of benefits.
- Universal Credit payments and claiming other benefits.
- The local development of Universal Credit.
- Increase in the use of Foodbanks.
- Mixed age couples claiming Universal Credit.
- Homelessness and the increased demand for advice and support.
- Universal Credit take up in the borough reflecting that countrywide.
- Mick Bullock may bring a case study which reflects work done by Helping hands and Citizens Advice Bureau to the next meeting. There are 300 claimants in Oadby and Wigston.
- 700 people are moving from Housing Benefits to Universal Credit.
- Universal Credit claimants have to sign up online. This can prove
  problematic for those not digitally savvy or not in possession of all the
  information they require. People are encouraged to use Customer Services
  on Bell Street for IT assistance.CAB and Helping Hands can also help.
- Some Universal Credit applications can be backdated.
- Advanced Payment Loans are available.

#### **Action:**

• It was agreed to share the contact details for Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Revenues and Benefits Team which is included in the update circulated at the meeting.

#### **Action:**

Circulate the Universal Credit update paper provided to all.

#### 41. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Jane Edwards brought information about the Plastics event.

**Date:** Friday, 9 August 2019. The time and location is to be confirmed.

#### Action:

Jayne Edwards is to circulate the Plastics Pledge information to everyone.

#### **Action:**

• Information about the plastic pledge is to come to the next CEF for discussion.

#### 42. DIFFERENT STREAMS OF FUNDING

#### 42a. ASDA STORES FUNDING

Beth Domingo, the Community Life Champion at ASDA (Oadby), spoke about the funding pilots available to not for profit groups.

Three charities per quarter are funded. Customers vote by using green tokens. The first prize is £500. The second prize is £200. There is a form instore to fill in. Funding can go to good causes such as Hearing Cause.

There are local impact grants available. It is split into 5 categories. All the grants go to good causes. £615 was awarded to the Elderberries, Wigston. A sporting grant was awarded to Oadby and Wigston Team. There is funding to help holiday clubs. £1,000 was awarded to Saffron Young Peoples Project. Christmas Projects and the Bridge were helped. ASDA want to support spend on good causes. Application forms are filled in alongside Beth For information about the Foundation click the following link: https://www.asdafoundation.org/

#### 42b. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FORUM FUNDING

The Chair noted the Community Engagement Forum is to receive a pot of funding for which the Third Sector will be instrumental in distributing.

#### **Action:**

• This CEF grant will be brought to the next CEF to organise what the criteria will be for spend.

#### 42c. MONTHLY FUNDING INFORMATION

A paper copy of Leicestershire County Council list of funding was circulated.

#### **Action:**

Circulate the funding package to all.

#### 43. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

Tuesday, 5 November 2019 at 1:30 p.m. The venue for all meetings is Oadby & Wigston Borough Council Offices, Council Chamber, Bushloe House, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR.

#### THE MEETING CLOSED AT 3.45 PM

<b>E</b>
Chair
Tuesday, 5 November 2019

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

# Minute Item 40





## **Universal Credit Update – Community Engagement Forum 09 July 2019**

#### **Key points about Universal Credit**

- It is administered by The DWP not by Local Authorities.
- It will eventually replace "Legacy Benefits" (Housing Benefit, Tax Credits, JSA, ESA, and Income Support) with one single claim/payment.
- It only applies to new claims and certain changes at present so those receiving legacy benefits will remain on them unless there is a change.
- It does not apply to single claimants who are of pension age or couples where both are of pension age.
- It applies to most working age claimants and mixed age couples (where one is working age and one is pension age (please see note below).
- Claimants receiving the Severe Disability premium in their legacy benefit payments cannot move to Universal Credit yet. This is to provide protection for these claimants as they would be worse off as Universal Credit does not include the Severe Disability premium.
- It is paid monthly in arrears with the first payment usually made after 5 weeks.
- Advance payments can be made but will need to be paid back each month over 12 months.
- Eventually most Legacy Benefit claims will move to Universal Credit. This is known as "managed migration".
- DWP are aiming to complete this "managed migration" by December 2023. A pilot will start in July 2019 at Harrogate. It is not known when Oadby and Wigston will be affected.
- Housing Benefit will still be paid for Temporary (Homeless) and Supported Accommodation.
- Council, Housing Association and Private Tenants will normally have their Housing Costs paid in with the one "lump sum" payment so it's important they make arrangements to pay their rent.
- Direct payments can be made to landlords but only in certain circumstances (such as history of arrears, debt problems etc).
- Universal Credit does not include Council Tax Support or Free School Meals so it's important to make sure these are claimed.

#### **Changes to Universal Credit**

- Prior to 15 May 2019 mixed age couples (where one person is pension age and the other is working age) could choose whether to claim Universal Credit or to claim Pension Credit / Housing Benefit. From 15 May 2019 they do not have the choice and must claim Universal Credit. Concerns have been raised nationally that this will make these claimants worse off. It will not affect single claimants of pension age or couples where both are pension age. Mixed age couples who currently receive Pension Credit / Housing Benefit will not be affected until they move to Universal Credit through a change in their circumstances or through "managed migration". Couples who become mixed age will move to Universal Credit. Claimants will be contacted by the DWP if they are affected.
- On 01 April 2019 a new service called "Help to Claim" was introduced by the DWP. The service is
  funded by the Government and provided by Citizens Advice. It aims to provide a consistent approach
  nationally to help claimants to make a claim and receive payments for Universal Credit. Referrals to
  the service will be made by Job Centres, Local Authorities, and other organisations or by self-referral.
  Help will be provided on-line, by phone or face to face. More information can be found on the Citizens
  Advice website <a href="https://citizensadviceleicestershire.org/">https://citizensadviceleicestershire.org/</a> The service is not compulsory and claimants
  can still seek advice from other organisations.

## How you can help claimants

- Help them claim Universal Credit
- Help them claim Council Tax Support and Free School meals.
- Help them claim Discretionary Housing Payments and Discretionary Council Tax Support.
- Advise them of Advance payments (but caution it has to be paid back)
- Refer them for Managing money / debt advice where required.
- Advise them to set up standing orders or direct debits to pay regular bills such as rent and Council Tax.

# **Contacts - Oadby and Wigston Borough Council**

### **Chetna Solanki-Mistry**

Financial Inclusion Officer
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 2DR

Telephone: 0116 257 2713 direct line

Email: <a href="mailto:chetna.solanki-mistry@oadby-wigston.gov.uk">chetna.solanki-mistry@oadby-wigston.gov.uk</a>

#### Mick Bullock

Revenues and Benefits Manager
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 2DR

Telephone: 0116 257 2713 direct line Email: mick.bullock@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

#### Benefits team

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

Council Offices, Station Road, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 2DR

**Telephone:** 0116 288 8961 option 4 **Email:** Benefits@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

#### Customer Services team

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

Customer Service Centre: 40 Bell Street, Wigston, Leicestershire LE18 1AD

Telephone: 0116 288 8961

Email: customerservices@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Website (which includes links to DWP / Gov.uk sites)

https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/universal\_credipage 2 ~

# **Impact of Universal Credit on Residents**

#### Number of UC claimants

- There are approximately 300 people receiving Universal Credit in Oadby and Wigston
- 175 tenants (Private, Council and Housing Associations) receiving housing costs through Universal Credit.
- Ultimately around 700 will move from Housing Benefit to Universal Credit but there will also be other people who receive legacy benefits but not housing benefit. .
- Figures are approximate and will increase month by month as new claims are made.

#### Moving people into work and off benefits

- The aim of Universal Credit is to move people into work and off benefits.
- There is no clear information as to whether this is effective locally although nationally the number of people in work has increased although this will include zero hour contracts and seasonal work.

#### Claiming Universal credit

- Making a claim is "digital by default" and this has caused problems for claimants as the process can prove complicated.
- There is also confusion as to whether UC or HB should be claimed which has been made worse by recent changes.
- In addition claims are only usually counted as made when the form is completed (this is different to HB when the "first contact" counts as the claim date.
- Assistant is available via the "Help to Claim" service by Citizens Advice or from other agencies.

## **Payments**

- Delays to payments are a major criticism of Universal Credit.
- Advance payments have been made more available to help with this but it's important to remember that these have to be paid back each month.

## Claiming other benefits

- Universal Credit does not include Council tax Support or Free School meals so these have to be claimed separately.
- There are concerns that this will impact on take-up but we are promoting these benefits and so far there has been no significant impact.

#### **Rent arrears**

- Payments towards Housing Costs are usually paid in the "lump sum" and tenants have to make arrangements to pay their rent whereas housing benefit is normally paid direct for Housing Associations and the Council.
- This has led to more work for Housing Associations and Councils having to do more work to collect rent and support tenants and delays in payments have resulted in increased rent arrears.
- At OWBC rent arrears have increased by 30% since Universal Credit was introduced and UC claimants account for around 35% of rent arrears but only 20% of the tenants in arrears.
- Tenants are encouraged to set up direct debits to ensure payments are made on time.

#### Increase in use of Food banks

- In the last financial year there has been a 19% increase nationally in the use of foodbanks. Similar increases are likely locally as well.
- The Trussell trust has called for an end to the 5 week wait for Universal Credit payments.

## Mixed age couples having to claim UC

- While few claimants in OWBC have been affected so far numbers will increase.
- Mixed age couples will be worse off claiming UC compared to claiming Pension Credit and Housing Benefit.

#### **Homelessness**

- The number of homelessness in OWBC and nationally has increased over the last few years.
- The reasons for homelessness are complex and concerns both locally and nationally are that Universal Credit will impact.

## Increase demand for advice and support

- Advice agencies have found that there has been an increase in demand particularly for helping to claim Universal Credit and debt problems caused, or made worse by the delay in payments.
- Staff at OWBC are trained to provide help and advice for residents on Universal Credit and other benefits.
- At OWBC we have a Service Level Agreement with Citizens Advice and Helping Hands to provide advice and support for residents. This includes surgeries at our Customer service Centre.
- Advice and support is also provided by other Voluntary organisations such as Age UK.
- Residents can also access help on line or via their job centre.

# FREE EVENT Minute Item 41

# Reduce your plastics use

# Friday 9 August 12 – 2pm

Trinity Methodist Church, Harborough Road, Oadby, Leicester LE2 4LA

Explore how to reduce our reliance on single- use plastics and encourage others to do the same

#### **Programme**

**12 noon Welcome** – Neil O'Brien OBE MP for Harborough

**12.05** Why are we here? - Jayne Edwards

Leicestershire Adult Learning Service (LALS) was commissioned to develop a 2-hour interactive learning session about **Reducing our single use plastics.**Bringing together energy from Blue Planet 2 programme and the Harborough Plastics Pledge

12.15 Oadby Rotary Clubs Plastic Free Initiative

The plastic free standards and how to get plastic free accreditation for Oadby. Every little we do will help to reduce the suffering of the marine animals and reduce the damage from plastics to human health

- **12.45** Reduce your plastics interactive learning session Jayne Edwards, Locality Engagement Coordinator LALS. An overview of the interactive learning session and wider adult learning
- 1.15 Thanks and ideas for action
- 1.30 Questions and tea Zeph's Café will be open for snacks/lunches
- 2.00 Close

Booking is via email only and must be booked by 5<sup>th</sup> August 2019 latest and sent to

LALS.WigstonBS@leics.gov.uk













**Working in** 



# Monthly Funding Information July 2019

Below is a list of current grants and funding opportunities primarily for Voluntary & Community Sector Groups and Organisations, Charities and Social Enterprises.

# Where the Grant title includes an asterisk (\*), Local Authorities and other partner organisations may also be eligible to apply for the funding.

This information can also be accessed via the Leicestershire Communities website.

Please note that Leicestershire County Council has a contract with <u>Voluntary Action LeicesterShire</u> (VAL) to provide support to voluntary and community sector organisations in Leicestershire, including help with identifying and securing funding. If you are a VCS organisation who is seeking to apply for funding, or bid for contracts, please contact VAL's Sector Support Team for assistance, advice and guidance. You can also sign up for further e-bulletins from VAL, including, news, information, events, funding opportunities and job vacancies. More details can be seen on the VAL <u>website</u>.

Please use the links in the table below to go directly to the relevant section:

Funding for projects which support Adults (including older people, veterans and with disabilities)		
Grant Fund	Closest Deadline	
SHIRE Community Grant	8 <sup>th</sup> July 2019	
Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust - Removing Barriers to Family Life	18 <sup>th</sup> July 2019	
<u>Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust's - Positive Pathways Programme</u>	Open/6 <sup>th</sup> Sept 2019	
Carers Innovation Fund - Opening Soon		
Funding for projects which support Young People (including young people with disabilities)		
Grant Fund	Closest Deadline	
SHIRE Community Grant	8 <sup>th</sup> July 2019	
Nesta - EdTech Innovation Fund	15 <sup>th</sup> July 2019	
Anti-Knife Crime Community Fund	24 <sup>th</sup> July 2019	
Inter Faith Youth Trust - Small Grant Programme	23 <sup>rd</sup> August 2019	

Funding for projects which support broader community outcomes	
Grant Fund	Closest Deadline
Govt Whole House Retrofit Innovation Competition *	1st Aug 2019
Nesta Challenges – Tech to Connect Challenge	7 <sup>th</sup> Aug 2019
Lloyds Bank Foundation – Enable Grant	31 <sup>st</sup> Aug 2019
UK Theatres - Small Grants Scheme	2 <sup>nd</sup> Sept 2019
Esmée Fairbairn Collections Fund	11 <sup>th</sup> Sept 2019
Carnegie UK Trust - Engaging Libraries *	25 <sup>th</sup> Sept 2019
SHIRE Recycling Grants	27 <sup>th</sup> Sept 2019
National Lottery Heritage Fund - Heritage Horizon Awards	11 <sup>th</sup> Oct 2019
Nationwide Building Society Community Grants	21st Oct 2019
SHIRE Community Climate Change grant	31st Oct 2019
Architectural Heritage Fund -Transforming Places Through Heritage	Open
British Cycling - Places to Ride Grants Programme *	Open till 2021
Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport - Gigabit Broadband Voucher	Open
<u>Scheme</u>	
Support available for organisations interested in social investment	

### **Funding for projects which support Adults**

#### **SHIRE Community Grant**

Eligible organisations, including charities, community groups, social enterprises and Town/Parish Councils, can access grants of up to £10,000 and/or smaller grants of up to £3,000 for community-based projects and activities that are specifically focused on supporting vulnerable and disadvantaged people and communities.

Leicestershire County Council are particularly interested in funding new and innovative projects that will:

- improve the lives, health and wellbeing of vulnerable and disadvantaged individuals and communities in Leicestershire
- provide early intervention and prevention-based solutions which help to reduce demand on Council and other public services
- complement existing services already being delivered

There are three remaining deadlines for applications for 2019-20: Monday 8<sup>th</sup> July Monday 9<sup>th</sup> September Monday 11<sup>th</sup> November

#### Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust - Removing Barriers to Family Life

The Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust has launched a £7.5M programme to award grants to Armed Forces Charities or Community Interest Companies or Armed Forces Units working with Armed Forces Families. The programme is about supporting Armed Forces Families facing challenges. Large grants will help to address substantial challenges; providing funding for transformative ideas. Medium grants will support projects that make a proven difference to Armed Forces Families and will support existing work.

The programme will award grants to projects which will be of practical benefit to Armed Forces Families. The focus of the project should be on supporting the family; rather than serving personnel or veterans.

This programme will be delivered in two strands:

- Medium Strand: Grants of between £30,000-£100,000 to support existing or new projects that meet a clear need for Armed Forces Families.
- Large Strand: Grants between £100,001- £300,000 with some exceptional projects potentially receiving up to £500,000. Projects will need to be able to show that they will have a transformative effect, and that the changes they achieve will be sustainable.

The deadline for applications to the medium strand is 12 September 2019.

The deadline for applications to the large strand is 18 July 2019.

#### **Armed Forces Covenant Fund Trust's - Positive Pathways Programme**

One-off grants are available to Armed Forces charities for projects and activities that support the mental health and wellbeing of veterans in the UK.

The £9 million Positive Pathways Programme is one of two funding programmes that form the Trust's Veterans' Mental Health and Wellbeing Fund. The Fund, which launched in 2018, is provided by the UK Government and aims to give veterans more choice and control over their own personal recovery journeys; enabling them to take part in activities that are personally meaningful, while receiving good support with their mental health and wellbeing needs.

The Positive Pathways Programme offers fixed one-year grants of £35,000 or two-year grants of £70,000 to registered charities or Community Interest Companies (CICs) that are primarily supporting past and present members of the Armed Forces and their families.

Funding can be used towards the costs of activity-based projects (such as sports, arts or outdoor activities) that will have a positive impact on the mental health and wellbeing of veterans throughout the UK. The Trust will prioritise applications from small and local (rather than national) organisations, and those whose projects are led or partly led by veterans.

Applicants will need to demonstrate:

- That veterans really want to take part and will be active participants in the activity being proposed.
- How the activity being offered will help to improve mental wellbeing.
- That they are prepared to work with other organisations that can help connect the work into wider pathways of support.

Successful applicants under the Positive Pathways Programme will be supported by larger organisations, which have already been awarded grants under the Fund's Strategic Pathways Programme, to help connect their work with wider networks that support veterans' mental health.

Applications are assessed on a rolling basis.

Applications submitted by 6 September 2019 will receive a decision by the end of November 2019.

#### **Carers Innovation Fund - Opening Soon**

A multi-million fund investing in new projects to improve carers' wellbeing is soon to open to applications. Provided by the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC), the Carers Innovation Fund will invest in innovative ways of supporting unpaid carers, outside of mainstream health and care services. The Fund aims to support accessible, carer-friendly communities and public services and also seeks to provide evidence on effective interventions to support carers.

The funding will be used to improve support across England and help build more carer-friendly communities. Projects will be expected to show a positive effect on:

- carers' health and wellbeing;
- carers' ability to manage work alongside caring responsibilities;
- carers' ability to take a break from their caring role;
- · reducing loneliness and social isolation.

Applicants will need to demonstrate that their idea is a fresh approach that is better than existing provision, will benefit the local community and can be expanded and replicated.

The total budget of the programme is £5 million. Organisations are invited to bid for up to £500,000. Applications will be sought from organisations in England, from a mix of sectors. The voluntary sector, charities, small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and commercial organisations can all bid for funding to prove their concept, with the aim of securing longer term funding from other sources.

Stage one applications, via expression of interest, are expected to open before the end of June 2019.

### **Funding for projects which support Young People**

#### **SHIRE Community Grant**

Eligible organisations, including charities, community groups, social enterprises and Town/Parish Councils, can access grants of up to £10,000 and/or smaller grants of up to £3,000 for community-based projects and activities that are specifically focused on supporting vulnerable and disadvantaged people and communities.

Leicestershire County Council are particularly interested in funding new and innovative projects that will:

- improve the lives, health and wellbeing of vulnerable and disadvantaged individuals and communities in Leicestershire
- provide early intervention and prevention-based solutions which help to reduce demand on Council and other public services
- complement existing services already being delivered

There are three remaining deadlines for applications for 2019-20: Monday 8th July Monday 9th September Monday 11th November

#### Nesta - EdTech Innovation Fund

Nesta is offering grants of £100,000 to organisations in the UK to support more effective use of education technology in England.

Nesta is working in partnership with the Department for Education (DfE) to help schools and colleges in England make more effective use of technology. The first stage of this £4.6m partnership is the EdTech Innovation Fund.

The EdTech Innovation Fund will support up to 20 organisations to improve, evaluate and grow the reach of digital tools across four challenge areas:

- Formative assessment
- Essay marking
- Parental engagement
- Timetabling

Grants will be awarded to projects that support:

- Improvement improving and testing early-stage products that want to grow their reach and impact
- Implementation supporting products to expand their reach to more schools, colleges and students
- Evidence supporting organisations to build the evidence base for what works in the four challenge areas.

Applications must be submitted in the name of a corporate body which may include schools, charities or private companies.

Organisations can be from outside the UK, but products must be applicable to the English education system.

This fund will support up to 20 organisations with grants of up to £100,000 for a period of 18 months.

Applications should be submitted by the deadline 15 July 2019.

#### **Anti-Knife Crime Community Fund**

The Fund, which is one the commitments outlined in the government's Serious Violence Strategy published in April 2018, was set up to support community projects delivered by voluntary sector organisations which tackle knife crime.

The Fund is intended to help communities to respond to the challenges around knife crime, and in particular support activities to prevent young people from engaging in knife related offending.

Such impact should include provision of support through prevention and early intervention, and provision of immediate, emergency support and conflict mediation and after care. All applications must demonstrate that they respond to the challenges of tackling knife crime within local communities.

Applications should be for funding for single projects of up to a maximum of £30,000. Organisations should begin to deliver projects without delay and must be completed and delivered by 30 March 2020.

Bids will need to demonstrate a previous proven history of delivering anti-knife crime work, especially to young people, and will be assessed on the basis of the extent to which they demonstrate a proven track record of an organisation's ability to deliver knife crime interventions in work with children and young people.

The deadline for applications is 24 July 2019.

#### **Inter Faith Youth Trust - Small Grant Programme**

Small grants are available for young people to run events or projects connected with Inter Faith Week 2019.

Grants of up to £800 will be awarded to proposals for inter-faith activities by children and young people from Christian, Jewish, Muslim, Hindu, Sikh and other faiths and those of no formal faith in understanding and co-operation. The age range for young people is 11-25 years.

Projects should take place during Inter Faith Week 2019 (10 – 17 November).

The aims of Inter Faith Week are to:

- Strengthen good inter faith relations at all levels.
- Increase awareness of the different and distinct faith communities in the UK, in particular celebrating and building on the contribution which their members make to their neighbourhoods and to wider society.
- Increase understanding between people of religious and non-religious beliefs.

Priority will be given to projects which:

- Actively involve young people in planning, running, and evaluation of the project.
- Promote positive action i.e. young people from different backgrounds coming together to address shared problems like improving green spaces.
- Are run by non-statutory organisations, such as youth clubs, scout/guide groups, local voluntary and community organisations.

Grants can provide part-funding. Grants are not available for converting young people to a different faith.

The deadline for applications is Friday 23 August 2019.

#### Funding for projects which support broader community outcomes

#### Govt. - Whole House Retrofit Innovation Competition \*

Businesses, public and third sector organisations can now apply for funding to carry out projects to reduce the cost of retrofitting domestic properties in the UK.

The government is calling for applications to a new competition to help accelerate a reduction in the cost of retrofitting domestic properties in the UK to the same standard as new builds. The Whole House Retrofit (WHR) Innovation Competition will support the government's ambition of halving the cost of completing this work by 2030.

Approximately £9.4 million will be available for a limited number of projects which demonstrate a cost reduction trajectory for whole house retrofit. A maximum of £4.7 million will be available for each project.

Successful projects will focus on upgrading social housing properties, given the comparative uniformity of the dwellings, and the ability to procure at scale. However, credible alternative proposals may also be considered.

Eligible project expenditure may include:

- personnel costs: researchers, technicians and other supporting staff;
- instruments and equipment;
- buildings and land;
- contractual research, knowledge and patents; and
- materials, supplies and similar products, incurred directly as a result of the project.

Bids are welcomed from any UK organisation or consortium which can meet the expected outputs; including SMEs, large enterprises, academic, financial, research, public and third sector organisations.

The deadline for Expressions of Interest is 5pm on 1 August 2019.

Full bids should be submitted by 5pm on 15 August 2019.

Projects must be completed by March 2021.

# Nesta Challenges – Tech to Connect Challenge (support for projects using tech to reduce isolation)

Nesta Challenges is inviting applications from charities, social enterprises and social ventures in England to its Tech to Connect Challenge, which offers £1 million to help civil society organisations to develop tech-based solutions to reduce social isolation.

Funded by the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS), the fund consists of £500,000 worth of business support from Nesta Challenges and £500,000 in grant funding.

Applicants will be asked to detail a problem related to social isolation in England and their idea for how technology can help to address it. The solutions can be direct ('this is how we plan to change the interactions between people') or indirect (this is how we plan to improve the service we offer people face-to-face).

After an initial assessment, 7 finalists will be invited to follow a programme of guided support over 5 months. During this time, they will conduct further user research, design and develop a prototype and a plan for its implementation, then develop a working prototype of the technology.

Submissions to the Tech to Connect prize close on Wednesday 7th August 2019.

#### **Lloyds Bank Foundation – Enable Grant**

Lloyds Bank Foundation's Enable Grants provide opportunities for charities to develop or trial new approaches to service delivery, so they can become more effective in their work.

Charities can apply for funding for activities which improve their capability in areas such as business development and planning, monitoring, leadership and governance and communications. An Enable grant can put a charity in a stronger position to deliver services and attract more volunteers, funding and support.

Grants of up to a total of £15,000 across one or two years are available.

The fund is open to registered charities with income between £25,000 and £1 million, who work to support people aged 17+ who are facing one or more of their specified complex social problems.

Closing date for applications 31st August 2019.

#### **UK Theatres - Small Grants Scheme**

Capital-improvement grants of up to £5,000 are available to charities and not-for-profit groups that run theatres in the UK.

Provided by the Theatres Trust and supported by funding from the Andrew Lloyd Webber Foundation and the Charles Michael Holloway Trust, the UK Theatres Small Grants Scheme offers grants for projects that:

- Address urgent building repairs.
- Improve operational viability.
- Introduce environmental improvements.
- Enhance physical accessibility.

Applicants should be able to demonstrate that they run a regular theatre programme of professional, community and/or amateur work, presenting no less than 30 performances a year, and that the funded improvements will add value to the organisation's work in the local community.

The next deadline for applications is 2 September 2019 (midday).

#### **Esmée Fairbairn Collections Fund**

Grants of between £20,000 and £120,000 are available to museums and galleries in the UK for time-limited projects that demonstrate the significance, distinctiveness and power of collections to people.

The Fund, provided by the Esmée Fairbairn Foundation and administered by the Museums Association (MA), awards nearly £1.2 million per year to around 10 to 16 high-quality projects, focusing on collections that are typically held by accredited museums or a partnership of museums and other organisations.

Eligible projects can be up to three years in duration and must:

- Work with an existing collection or collections to improve understanding of them and increase their use; and
- Through that collections work, involve, inspire and have value for people, communities and audiences.

Projects are expected to be innovative, outward-looking and seek change, in the context and scale of the museum. This might include leading practice that influences the whole sector or creating a replicable model of working for the applicant organisation itself.

Grants can be used towards a wide range of engagement activities outside the scope of an organisation's core resources including co-curation, research, digitisation, conservation, documentation and exhibition costs.

The next deadline for applications is 11 September 2019.

#### Carnegie UK Trust - Engaging Libraries \*

Engaging Libraries Phase 2 will support public libraries to run public engagement activities on research within the themes of health, society and culture. It will help to facilitate partnerships between public libraries and researchers, and spark people's curiosity around topics that are relevant or interesting to them.

The programme is a partnership between the Carnegie UK Trust, Wellcome and the Wolfson Foundation, and will offer funding to deliver a public engagement project on research in health, society and culture

Funding is available as follows:

- £12k £25k if you are applying as a single library service
- £12k £50k if you are submitting a joint application

The programme is aiming to support around 20 projects. It expects projects to begin from November 2019 and to spend 3-6 months further developing and refining their idea, with activities to be completed by May 2021.

Applications close on 25 September 2019.

#### **SHIRE Recycling Grants**

Leicestershire County Council is committed to minimising the amount of waste that is thrown away. In order to help achieve this, the Council is offering up to £3,000 in the form of SHIRE Recycling Grants.

These grants will be available for eligible community-based organisations to deliver local waste prevention, recycling and composting projects and activities.

We are particularly interested in funding new and innovative projects that will:

- Reduce household waste, divert waste from disposal and optimise levels of recycling and composting in a cost-effective way.
- Reduce the amount of waste produced in Leicestershire by waste reduction, reuse and recycling and encouraging resourcefulness through repairing, refurbishing, repurposing, sharing, swapping and composting.
- Enable residents and communities to get involved in waste related initiatives and support permanent changes in individual behaviours.

The next closing date for applications is Friday 27<sup>th</sup> September 2019.

#### National Lottery Heritage Fund - Heritage Horizon Awards

Large-scale grants are available over the next three years for ambitious heritage projects that will bring about positive changes and benefits to people, places and the wider heritage sector in the UK.

In its first year (2020–2021), the Heritage Horizon Awards has a total funding pot of £50 million.

Individual grants of a minimum of £5 million each are available for non-profit organisations and partnerships led by non-profit organisations to support projects that will reflect the ethos behind the scheme – "Backing big ideas, unlocking possibilities" – by being transformative, innovative and collaborative

All kinds of heritage projects are eligible. Heritage can be anything from the past that is valued and should be passed on to future generations and could include:

- Oral history: people's memories and experiences.
- Cultural traditions, such as stories, festivals, crafts, music and dance.
- Nature, for example, habitats, species, and geology.
- Natural and designed landscapes, such as parks and gardens.
- Community archaeology.
- Historic buildings, monuments, and environments.
- Collections of objects, books or documents in museums, libraries or archives.
- Histories of people and communities or places and events.
- The heritage of languages and dialects.
- Places and objects linked to the UK's industrial, maritime and transport history.

Projects that focus on the National Lottery Heritage Fund's current strategic priorities (landscapes and nature, and heritage at risk) will be considered favorably.

The deadline for Expressions of Interest is 11 October 2019.

#### **Nationwide Building Society Community Grants**

The Nationwide Community Grants programme awards grants of up to £50,000 to local housing projects that will strengthen local communities by supporting the most vulnerable by:

- Preventing people from losing their home
- Helping people into a home
- Supporting people to thrive within the home environment

Charities, Community Land Trusts and housing co-operatives can apply for grants of between £10,000 and £50,000 to make a change in their local area.

#### Eligible costs include:

- Core costs of up to 20% of the requested grant amount including running and facility costs, office equipment, supplies, any travel and accommodation, printing etc. (this does not include staff costs).
- Staff and volunteer costs for the lead partner
- Small-scale capital costs including one-off expenses for equipment or fixed assets such as computer hardware or perishable capital that are required for the delivery of a project, such as paint, paintbrushes and gardening equipment.
- Activity costs that help to facilitate projects or activities, but that fall outside of capital, staffing & volunteering costs; such as catering or insurance.
- Development and capacity building costs to support organisational sustainability; such as staff/volunteer training, external consultancy fees.
- Building works and refurbishment costs where they are essential to the successful delivery of the project.

To discuss your application please talk to your local Community Foundation.

#### Fund open from 21st October nationally / 22nd November in Leicestershire

#### **SHIRE Community Climate Change Grant**

Voluntary and Community Groups and organisations are being encouraged to apply to help them to reduce their carbon emissions by improving their community buildings.

The grant fund is for community projects in Leicestershire (not Leicester City or Rutland) that help to improve the energy efficiency of community buildings and make local environmental changes to help reduce carbon emissions.

A maximum grant of £5,000 per applicant is available for projects in any one financial year. Grants are available for:

- EPC's (Energy Performance Certificate) or DEC's (Display Energy Certificate) of community buildings
- Installation of energy efficiency measures such as new heating systems, roof or cavity wall insulation or low energy lighting
- Installation of renewable energy systems

The first closing date for applications is Friday 31st October 2019

# <u>Architectural Heritage Fund - Transforming Places Through Heritage Programme</u>

This programme supports projects that will contribute to the transformation of high streets and town centres in England, helping them become thriving places, strengthening local communities and encouraging local economies to prosper. It is part of a wider initiative to revive heritage high streets in England, alongside Historic England's High Streets Heritage Action Zones. Together, these programmes form part of the Future High Streets Fund, administered by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government.

Their programme is for individual heritage buildings in, or transferring to, community ownership. They will support charities and social enterprises to develop projects with the potential to bring new life to high streets by creating alternative uses for redundant or underused historic buildings in town centres.

The AHF can provide grants to help with assessing the viability of a project, or to help fund development costs or to match funds raised through Crowdfunding and Community Shares. It will also provide a small number of capital (delivery) grants for Transformational Projects.

The dates for the opening of initial grant applications are as follows:

- **Project Viability Grants:** up to £15,000, for early viability and feasibility work, open for applications from **1st July 2019**
- **Project Development Grants:** up to £100,000, for capital project development costs, open for applications from **1st July 2019**
- Crowdfunding Challenge Grants: up to £25,000, to match fund crowdfunding campaigns, open for applications from 1st July 2019
- Transformational Project Grants: up to £350,000, for transformational capital projects, open for project enquiries from 29th July 2019
- Community Shares Booster Grants: further info to be announced.

#### Which areas will be eligible?

The programme will focus on places where strategic regeneration programmes are planned or are already underway. This includes Heritage Action Zones or places that have secured funding through the Future High Streets Fund. Historic building projects located within other area-based regeneration programmes, such as Townscape Heritage areas or where an applicant can demonstrate a significant community-led strategic approach is in place, will also be considered. Projects should not be standalone but sit within a wider initiative to regenerate and bring a new purpose to the immediate surrounding area.

Please note that this grant cannot be used to fund the same work that is being grant-aided through a Future High Streets Fund or High Streets Heritage Action Zone programme. These strands of funding cannot partner each other but will fund projects that are complementary. These strands of funding may separately fund different stages of one project.

#### British Cycling - Places to Ride Grants Programme \*

British Cycling's Placed to Ride is a grant funding programme for the development of new, or the improvement of existing, cycling facilities across England.

The programme will fund the development of multi-use facilities to engage with a broad spectrum of cyclists and to encourage people who have never cycled before to get on their bikes. Applications can also be made to improve existing cycling facilities and support opportunities to ride in communities across England.

Small grants of between £1,000 and £50,000 are available. It is expected that the average grant will be much less than £50,000. Larger grants of up to £500,000 are available for larger projects. A total of £15 million is available for the three-year grants programme.

Examples of projects that might be funded include:

- New cycling facilities.
- Improvements to existing cycling facilities, such as lighting, fencing, workshop space or toilets.
- Learn to ride areas.
- Combined and co-located schemes with various cycling facility types available.
- Equipment such as bicycles, specialised bicycles, storage facilities, datatracking monitors, coaching equipment, etc.
- Cycling kit and equipment.
- Training equipment.
- Cycle storage.
- Other items that can support innovative solutions to getting more people riding bikes, e.g., using technology.

Applications will be accepted from not-for-profit organisations located in England, including clubs, local authorities, community organisations, education establishments and charitable organisations.

Applications can be submitted at any time until 15 January 2021, when the programme ends.

Decisions will be made every 12 weeks.

# <u>Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport - Gigabit Broadband Voucher Scheme</u>

Full fibre broadband connections offer the fastest and most reliable speeds available and, as part of the government commitment to a vision of a full fibre Britain, in March 2018 they announced the £67m Gigabit Broadband Voucher Scheme. Gigabit vouchers can be used by small businesses and the local communities surrounding them to contribute to the installation cost of a gigabit-capable connection.

Businesses can claim up to £2,500 against the cost of connection either individually or as part of a group project. Residents can benefit from the scheme with a voucher worth £500 as part of a group project.

From May 2019, premises in the harder-to-reach places in the UK may be eligible for additional funding.

As part of the Government's Rural Gigabit Connectivity programme, business and residents in some of the hardest-to-reach places in the UK are eligible for additional funding towards the cost of installing gigabit-capable broadband to their premises when part of a group project.

Rural premises with broadband speeds of less than 30Mbps can use vouchers worth up to £3,500 for each small and medium-sized businesses (SMEs), and up to £1,500 per residential premise. to support the cost of installing new gigabit-capable connections. This is subject to the eligibility rules.

#### No closing dates advertised

#### Support available for organisations interested in social investment

Social investment is a financial enablement tool which enables organisations to focus on organisational development and long-term sustainability. It can be used for buildings, infrastructure, IT, equipment, cashflow, enabling and retaining contracts and trading activities, kicking start new services/ projects or strategic positioning. Grant funding alone is not a viable source of sustainable business funding! A good place to start to find out more about social investment is the Good Finance website

Don't be put off by the fear of having to repay a loan when you first start exploring social enterprise and investment. Going on the investment readiness and social investment journey is beneficial in that it will help you to think about the direction your organisation will take and where income will be generated. It will therefore help you to develop a business mind-set. The journey is just as important as the end goal.

You are not obliged to take out a loan when developing social enterprise business models, but it is likely that you will need it if you are successful!

If you are interested in accessing support to develop and grow through enterprise and investment, you can contact:

VAL Sector Support Helpline 0116 2575050 helpline@valonline.org.uk

CASE 0116 222 5010 enquiries@case.coop